
Budget Hearing #48 - 2023 
Fairfield County Commissioners’ Office 

October 24, 2023 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting #46 - 2023 – October 17, 2023 - 1 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Commissioner Davis called the Budget Hearing Session to order at 11:00 a.m.  
 
Each hearing has a corresponding Budget Summary and Excel spreadsheet that are included in 
the minutes. 
 
Budget Hearing, EMA, 11:00 a.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; EMA and Facilities 
Director, Jon Kochis; and, Deputy Director of Operations, Garrett Blevins. 
 
Mr. Kochis spoke about grants used and received by Fairfield County EMA and added that  
EMPG is their main funding grant. He added that the proposed budget is within parameters. 
 
Commissioner Levacy asked for a highlight of the larger grants EMA uses. 
 
Mr. Blevins stated the PUCO grant allows EMA to offer additional training throughout the 
county.  
 
The Commissioners requested a discussion on fencing options for the Fairfield County Jail.  
 
Mr. Kochis proposed fencing in the rear of the jail to secure the parking lot of the Sheriff’s 
Office. He added that the current parking lot does not prevent others from entering the parking 
lot and tampering with the deputies’ personal vehicles. He added that the parking lot is where 
staff transfer equipment to their cruisers. He proposed a black galvanized fence along the 
Wheeling Street access with two control gates to allow only those vehicles with authorized 
access to enter and exit the lot.  
 
Commissioner Levacy was in favor of black galvanized steel fencing to retain the look of the 
jail. 
 
Commissioner Fix was in favor of adding shrubs in front of the fence to maintain the curb 
appeal.  
 
Commissioner Davis asked if there was a timeline for the project.  
 
Mr. Kochis stated the project could be started at any time and would not take long to complete.  
 
Commissioner Davis asked that the Sheriff’s Office be informed that the Commission is looking 
at aesthetics and asked for three different options. He added that he agreed with Commissioner 
Levacy that the jail was a $40M project and the Commission would like the fence to look great 
and fit the aesthetics of the jail and existing neighborhood.  
 
Budget Hearing, IT, 11:15 a.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; and IT Director, 
Dan Neeley.  
 



Budget Hearing #48 - 2023 
Fairfield County Commissioners’ Office 

October 24, 2023 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting #46 - 2023 – October 17, 2023 - 2 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Neeley spoke about procurement of major hardware that was included in the 2023 Budget 
and about the large cost of Office 365 licensing. 
 
Ms. Cordle stated that the licensing for Office 365 had previously come out of the Health 
Insurance Fund but there is no longer the ability to pay for the licensing from that fund. 
  
Ms. Knisely stated that 80% of the licensing had been paid from the Health Insurance Fund. 
 
Mr. Porter explained the reasoning for initially purchasing with the Health Insurance Fund. 
 
Mr. Neeley stated that the budget included an increase for training. 
 
Commissioner Levacy spoke about the need for training for both staff and leadership. 
 
Commissioner Fix stated his appreciation for the evolution the IT team has experienced over the 
last couple of years. 
 
Ms. Cordle added that there have been many changes with IT since it became a part of the 
Commissioner’s office and that she and Mr. Neeley have been in constant contact. 
 
Commissioner Davis stated that the Commissioners are all briefed regular on the needs of IT.  
 
Budget Hearing, Clerk of Courts, 11:30 a.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; and Clerk of Courts, 
Branden Meyer. 
 
Clerk of Courts, Meyer, stated that his office has been working with Ms. Knisely to understand 
his cash balances. 
 
Ms. Cordle stated that there will not be a placeholder added in the 2024 Budget for a title transfer 
as there has been in previous years. 
 
Clerk of Courts, Meyer, spoke about fees and taxes collected and the amounts that flow through 
his office. He also spoke about the Brinks replacement and added that a bailiff is leaving but a 
retiring deputy will be filling the position. Mr. Meyer stated that the implementation of the new 
Courtview software went well but that they have not been able to open the new drive thru due to 
a credit card machine issue. Mr. Meyer also stated that he currently has an open position that he 
does not believe he will be filling.  
 
Commissioner Davis stated that in his 25+ years of public service he has not seen positions 
eliminated with new systems. 
 
Clerk of Courts, Meyer, spoke about Drivers’ examiners, the exam course, passport, and photo 
services, and how busy his office expects to be with driving exams.  
 
Commissioner Levacy spoke about the large number of vehicle titles not being processed in this 
area due to the sale of dealerships to conglomerates who process the titles elsewhere. 
 
Clerk of Courts, Meyer, added that many of the dealerships in the area do not have a title clerk 
on site and the titles are taking a week and a half to get processed.  



Budget Hearing #48 - 2023 
Fairfield County Commissioners’ Office 

October 24, 2023 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting #46 - 2023 – October 17, 2023 - 3 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Budget Hearing, Veteran Services, 1:00 p.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; and Director of 
Veterans Services, Park Russell. 
 
Budget Director Hampson provided a Veterans Services budget summary.  
 
Mr. Russell stated the largest items include veterans’ outreach and advertisement to encourage 
veterans to seek services.  
 
Commissioners Davis asked why the lease agreement for the Veterans Services office space is 
increasing. 
 
Mr. Russell explained that the increase was outlined in the original agreement.  
 
Commissioner Davis asked Mr. Russell if he had a succession plan in place for his planned 
retirement. 
 
Mr. Russell explained that he plans to move Justin Messinger into his position. 
 
Commissioner Levacy asked why there has been less engagement with veterans. 
 
Mr. Russell explained that veterans typically don’t seek services until they notice problems and 
that he hopes to encourage veterans to seek services before that point.    
 
Budget Hearing, Municipal Clerk, 1:15 p.m. 
 
The Municipal Clerk Hearing was cancelled due to an illness. 
 
Budget Hearing, Auditor, 1:30 p.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; and Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; and County 
Auditor, Dr. Carri Brown. 
 
Dr. Brown provided a PowerPoint presentation that is contained in the meeting minutes.   
 
Dr. Brown spoke on General Fund revenue projections for 2024 and monthly and quarterly 
reviews. 
 
Commissioner Davis spoke about finances in years that cannot be accurately projected. 
 
Commissioner Fix stated that he had high expectations of what Dr. Brown would do in the 
Auditor’s Office and added that she exceeded those expectations. 
 
Dr. Brown replied that she has been working with the Auditor’s Association and following many 
of their protocols. 
 



Budget Hearing #48 - 2023 
Fairfield County Commissioners’ Office 

October 24, 2023 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting #46 - 2023 – October 17, 2023 - 4 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Commissioner Levacy stated that the Weights and Measures team is making a big impact in the  
county and making companies operate fairly. 
 
Dr. Brown spoke about enterprise resource planning, levy training with area schools, and her 
office’s Table of Organization, brand, and strategic themes. She also spoke about MCJDC and 
added that she will have a financial presentation at their next meeting. 
 
Commissioner Davis stated that one of his top tier items was getting MCJDC adjusted. 
 
Dr. Brown continued by speaking on the Real Estate Assessment Fund and merit based 
increases. 
 
Commissioner Davis asked if there is a balance on the building located at 108 N. High Street.  
 
Dr. Brown stated the county owns the building and there is no balance.  
 
Dr. Brown summarized the 2024 General Fund revenue projections.  
 
Commissioner Levacy asked how updates in the system are made to account for increases in 
square footage of a home.  
 
Dr. Brown stated that they will update the sales price of the home according to the square 
footage, but sometimes find out about an increase in square footage based off the sales price.  
 
Budget Hearing, Economic and Workforce Development, 2:00 p.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; and Economic and 
Workforce Development Director, Rick Szabrak. 
 
Mr. Szabrak stated Economic and Workforce Development has a few general increases in their 
2024 budget associated with travel and wage increases. He added that the training grant funds 
with Magna will run out in 2024 but that they would have opportunities to offer training grant 
services to other businesses. He also added that they received a grant for Hocking college to 
purchase equipment for a lab.  
 
Ms. Cordle asked if the agreement with Hicks Partners was included in the budget. 
 
Mr. Porter explained the Hicks Partners agreement is included in the ARP funds through the end 
of 2024. 
 
Commissioner Levacy stated he thinks it is important for the county to reach out to local 
companies such as Anchor Hocking to maintain a line of communication and support services. 
He also asked how the Workforce Center will handle its new construction while classes are 
taking place. 
 
Mr. Szabrak stated they have a plan to stagger lessons to ensure there’s enough space for all the 
students they accommodate. 
 
Commissioner Fix asked if the results of the investment per student at the Workforce Center 
could be quantified. 
 



Budget Hearing #48 - 2023 
Fairfield County Commissioners’ Office 

October 24, 2023 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting #46 - 2023 – October 17, 2023 - 5 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Szabrak stated they continue to investigate the metrics of what it takes to place students in 
the jobs they are seeking. 
 
Commissioner Levacy added that the idea of the Workforce Center is being more widely 
accepted and embraced.  
 
Budget Hearing, Job and Family Services, 2:15 p.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; Job and Family 
Services (JFS) Director, Corey Clark; JFS Deputy Director, Heather O’Keefe; JFS Finance 
Director, Josh Crawford; and FCFC Manager, Tiffany Wilson. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that JFS comes from a different budget perspective because of their funding 
streams. He added that they are not asking for additional funding but are appreciative of the 
funds that are provided and added that they believe that the funding is what makes them one of 
the leaders in the state. He added that they are one of four pilots for the Employer Benefit Bridge 
Program and that they are close in size to Licking and watch them closely. Mr. Clark stated that 
the most volatile is the Protective Services group because they do not know what they will 
receive from the state and that the assumption is that the state funding will remain flat. 
 
Commissioner Levacy asked what is received in state funding 
 
Mr. Clark stated that state funding is over $5.7M and then provided the details regarding a levy 
that would be needed to maintain programming. 
 
Commissioner Davis asked if there are costs that rival the costs associated with placement. 
 
Ms. Clark stated that placement costs are the most difficult because they can change. 
 
Ms. O’Keefe spoke about the costs associated with out of state placements. She also spoke about 
residential treatment facilities and the lack of availability and the placement of kids for systems 
that are unable to make placements. 
 
Commissioner Fix asked about the contract renewals for placement services and added that he 
continues to wonder if there is something we can create here to better serve the kids. He further 
added that he would like to pursue the possibility of adding a facility. 
 
Ms. O’Keefe added that the ODM is even struggling to add facilities. 
 
Commissioner Davis asked if we could get through the addiction issues. 
 
Mr. Clark stated there is a task force at the State level because every county says they cannot 
sustain the increase in addictions and the issues that come with them. Mr. Clark continued by 
speaking about the items that have been funded by the General Fund and added that he hopes 
that the formation of the Department of Children and Youth will assist with funding. 
 
Commissioner Levacy stated his angst over the fact that the State of Ohio does not have facilities 
to house kids that need to go into specified placements. The Commissioner asked when the last 
levy was passed for JFS. 
 
Mr. Clark replied that the last levy was passed in 2017. 



Budget Hearing #48 - 2023 
Fairfield County Commissioners’ Office 

October 24, 2023 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting #46 - 2023 – October 17, 2023 - 6 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Cordle spoke about the importance of separating the Meals on Wheels and Child Protective 
Services levies on the ballot. 
 
Mr. Clark spoke briefly about the JFS workforce. 
 
Commissioner Davis stated that the Commission completely supports JFS. 
 
Budget Hearing, Family and Children First Council, 2:30 p.m. 
 
In attendance: Commissioners Steve Davis, Dave Levacy, and Jeff Fix; County Administrator, 
Aundrea Cordle; Deputy County Administrator, Jeffrey Porter, Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, Rochelle Menningen; Communications and Information Coordinator, Bennett 
Niceswanger; Budget Director, Bart Hampson; Budget Clerk, Staci Knisley; Family and 
Children First Council (FCFC) Manager, Tiffany Wilson; JFS Director, Corey Clark; JFS 
Deputy Director, Heather O’Keefe; and JFS Finance Director, Josh Crawford. 
 
Ms. Wilson spoke about new programming and staff for that programming. She also spoke about 
some additional Triple P classes and added that they are in the process of developing a 3-year 
strategic plan. Ms. Wilson summarized the budget and spoke about some reductions in grant 
funding. 
 
Commissioner Davis asked if there is a balance pending for the grants. 
 
Ms. Wilson explained they should all be paid back except for the Safe Communities grant. She 
then spoke about the funds received from the County and requested flexibility in using those in-
home services. This request was approved.  
 
Ms. Cordle spoke about the new partnership between JFS and FCFC.  
 
Commissioner Davis asked if there are any pending managerial retirements at JFS coming up. 
 
Ms. O’Keefe stated there is one in the not immediate future and they have a succession plan in 
place.  
 
The Commissioners had short discussions regarding development in the county, differences in 
the budget, and the Commissioner’s appreciation for the work performed on the budgets by Mr. 
Hampson, Ms. Knisley, and Ms. Cordle. 
  
 Adjournment 
 
With no further business, on the motion of Jeff Fix and the second of Steve Davis, the Board of 
Commissioners voted to adjourn at 3:17 p.m. 
 
Roll call vote of the motion resulted as follows: 
Voting aye thereon: Dave Levacy, Jeff Fix, and Steve Davis 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Budget Hearing #48 - 2023 
Fairfield County Commissioners’ Office 

October 24, 2023 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting #46 - 2023 – October 17, 2023 - 7 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
   
        
Motion by: Jeff Fix     Seconded by: Dave Levacy 
that the October 24, 2023, Budget Hearing minutes were approved by the following vote: 
 
YEAS: Jeff Fix, Dave Levacy, and Steve Davis    NAYS: None 
ABSTENTIONS: None 
 
*Approved on October 31, 2023 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 Steven Davis     Dave Levacy                   Jeff Fix    
Commissioner    Commissioner    Commissioner  
 
 
____________________________ 
Rochelle Menningen, Clerk 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
          



 
THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK 

 

 



10/24/2023009



10/24/2023010



10/24/2023011



10/24/2023012



10/24/2023013



10/24/2023014



10/24/2023015



10/24/2023016



10/24/2023017



10/24/2023018



10/24/2023019



10/24/2023020



10/24/2023021



10/24/2023022



10/24/2023023



10/24/2023024



10/24/2023025



10/24/2023026



10/24/2023027



Fairfield County Clerk of Courts Office 

Organizational Chart 

Adm In/Fiscal 

Admln/Flscal 
Manager 

Britney Lee 

Legal Manager 
Erin Robinson 

Clvll/crlmlnal/ Appeals 

--- s.,-1Proi-D1r./ 
Ex•c:utiYI A.tolttlrnt 

Legal Supervisor 
Staff Trainer 

Betsy Thompson Cassie Strickler 

Flscal Specialist 
Jessica Murphy 

Flscal Specialist 
Ashley Arter 

Legal Deputy 
Clerk 

Jan Webb 

Legal Deputy 
Clerk 

Angel Miller 

Legal Deputy 
Clerk 

Colyn Weaver 

Lapl Deputy 
dark 

Wendy Tharp 

Legal Deputy 
Clerk 

Amanda Mccrady 

Domestic 

Legal Deputy 
Clerk Domestic 
Carie Fragoso 

Legal Deputy 
Clerk Domestic 
Ashley Bevard 

Legal Deputy 
Clerk Domestic 

Traci Less 

Legal Deputy 
Clerk Domestic 

Regina Long 

Clerk of Courts 

Branden Meyer 

Chief Deputy 

Michelle Carper 

Records 

Lepl Deputy 
Clerk Records 
Helen Berens 

Le11al Deputy 
Clerk Records 

Jessica Bowlen 

legal Deputy 
Clerk Records 

Christy Barker* 

Legal Deputy 
Clerk Records 
Jeanie Wears• 

Legal Deputy 
Clerk Records 
Brandy Brooks 

legal Deputy 
Oerk Records 

Jennifer Hanes 

Court IT Director 
Paul Allen• 

Cerk/Court 
Deputy 

Gerald Seipel • 

Title Supervisor 
Lancaster 

Kourtney Enyart 

Tltle Deputy 
Clerk Lancaster 

Debbie Hall 

Tltle Deputy 
Clerk Lancaster 

Angela Kempton 

Title Deputy 
Clerk Lancaster 

Tina Childers 

Title Deputy 
Clerk Lancaster 
Steven Sessler 

Title Deputy 
Clerk Lancaster 
Sandra Warner 

Tltle,Supervlsor 
Pltl(erlnston 

K�6'Aft.er 

:Aut. SujM!IVl�r 
P.lq,erl'1fl!ln 

Katie Wilker�on 

FAIRFIELD 
COUNTY · OHIO 

10/24/2023028



10/24/2023029



10/24/2023030



10/24/2023031



10/24/2023032



10/24/2023033



10/24/2023034



10/24/2023035



10/24/2023036



10/24/2023037



10/24/2023038



10/24/2023039



10/24/2023040



10/24/2023041



10/24/2023042



10/24/2023043



10/24/2023044



10/24/2023045



10/24/2023046



10/24/2023047



10/24/2023048



10/24/2023049



10/24/2023050



10/24/2023051



10/24/2023052



10/24/2023053



10/24/2023054



10/24/2023055



10/24/2023056



10/24/2023057



10/24/2023058



10/24/2023059



10/24/2023060



10/24/2023061



10/24/2023062



10/24/2023063



10/24/2023064



10/24/2023065



10/24/2023066



10/24/2023067



10/24/2023068



10/24/2023069



10/24/2023070



10/24/2023071



10/24/2023072



10/24/2023073



10/24/2023074



10/24/2023075



10/24/2023076



10/24/2023077



Maximizing GRF Allocations 

JFS utilizes the GRF contributions in a way that result in a ROI for 

Community Services, CSEA, CPS. 

• In CSEA the GRF allocation is used to draw down 2 federal dollars for every 1
local dollar used

• PA compensation plan coverage to offset expenses associated with the
compensation plan enhancements

• CPS allocations are used to offset rising placement cost

10/24/2023078



10/24/2023079



10/24/2023080



10/24/2023081



10/24/2023082



10/24/2023083



10/24/2023084



10/24/2023085



10/24/2023086



10/24/2023087



10/24/2023088




